
 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

TOWN HALL 

DUKE STREET 

BARROW-IN-FURNESS 

 
 

 
Monday, 10 October 2022 

 

To expedite the business of the meeting, Members are requested to give the  
Chief Executive adequate notice of any Amendment which they propose to raise. 

 
To:  The Members of Barrow Borough Council 
 
Madam Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL to be 

held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER at the TOWN HALL, BARROW on TUESDAY, 18TH 

OCTOBER, 2022 COMMENCING AT 5.30 PM for the transaction of the business specified 

below. 

 
 

Monitoring Officer 

_______________ 

 
Business 

 
1.   TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
 

2.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 To deal with any items of business which the Chair decides should be considered 
as matters of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government 
Act 1972.  (Urgent business may only be taken by reason of special 
circumstances (which will be recorded in the minutes), and if the Chair of the 
meeting is of the opinion that the item should be considered as a matter of 
urgency). 
 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in respect of 
items on this Agenda and to consider any dispensations. 
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting). 
 



 

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they have already declared in the Register,  as well as any other registrable 
or other interests.   
 

4.   MINUTES 
 

 To confirm the Minutes of the Council’s proceedings held on 19th July and 
Extraordinary meeting held on 14th September, 2022. 
 

5.   ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 To receive any announcements from the Chair, Leader or Head of Paid Service. 
 

6.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or 
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later 
than 5pm two working days before the meeting.  Information on how to make the 
application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s website 
www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 07825206525. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 

 

To receive any questions or representations which have been received from 
members of the public. 
 

(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 
members of the public. 

 
7.   EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S STATUTORY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR YEAR 

ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 
 

 To consider and receive the report. 
 

8.   UK SHARED PROSPERITY FUND INVESTMENT PLAN 
 

 To receive the update report. 
 

9.   (A)   TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES FROM THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEES AS 
CONTAINED IN MINUTE VOLUME AND CONSIDER 
RECOMMENDATIONS (WHERE NOT ALREADY DETERMINED ON THE 
AGENDA): 

  
(1) Planning (9th August, 13th September and 4th October, 2022) 
(2) Licensing Regulatory (11th July (Sub) and 8th September, 2022) 
(3) Licensing Sub (22nd August and 8th September, 2022) 
(4) Executive (27th July, 14th September, 29th September (Extraordinary) 

and 12th October, 2022) 
(5) Audit and Governance (28th July, 2022) 
(6) Overview and Scrutiny (15th September, 2022) 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

 
(B)   QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 

Council has agreed that time be set aside for questions to the Leader of the 
Council.  Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4 set out the procedure for questions 
to the Leader and the notice period required.  The Leader will also take any 
questions without notice relevant to the reports and minutes detailed on the 
agenda. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 
A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this Borough was held at the Town Hall, 
Barrow-in-Furness at 5.30 pm. on Tuesday the 19th day of July 2022. 
 
PRESENT:- Councillor Preston (Mayor in the Chair) and Councillors Assouad, 
Brook, Burns, Callister, Cassidy, D. Edwards, H. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, 
Hamilton, Husband, McClure, McEwan, McLeavy, Morgan, Pemberton, Roberts, 
Robson, C. Thomson, M. A. Thomson, Tyson, Wall, Worthington and Zaccarini. 
 
Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Chief Executive), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), 
Jon Huck (Democratic and Electoral Services Manager), Sandra Kemsley 
(Democratic Services Officer) and Katie Pepper (Democratic and Electoral 
Services Officer). 
 
15 – Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence had been submitted from Councillors Barlow, Biggins, 
Burley, Johnston, Mooney, Nott, Ronson, Seward and Shirley. 
 
16 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 22nd March, the Annual 
General meeting and Extraordinary Council meeting held on 18th May, 2022 
were taken as read and confirmed. 
 
17 – Announcements 
 
There were no announcements from the Chair, Leader or Head of Paid Service. 
 
18 – Public Participation 
 
No questions, representations, deputations or petitions had been received in 
respect of the meeting. 
 
19 – Question by the Public 
 
The Mayor advised Members that questions by members of the public did not 
give rise to debate or voting. 
 
Mr Brodie was not in attendance at the meeting. 
 
The question was as follows:- 
 

“How many decades do Central Ward residents have to suffer before 
action is taken against derelict property owners? Number 16 Brown Street 
and number 19 Storey Square are of particular concern”. 

 
The Deputy Leader of the Council responded that Councillor Robson had been 
involved with this case and had spoken to both Mr Brodie and local residents 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



and believed significant progress had been made. Councillor Robson would 
contact him to provide an update and keep him informed. 
 
20 – Presentation of Former Mayor’s Medal  
 
The Mayor presented the former Mayor’s Medal on behalf of the Borough 
Council to Councillor Kevin Hamilton in recognition of the duties he had carried 
out on behalf of the Borough as Mayor from May 2019 to April 2021. 
 
21 – Allocation of Committee Places and Appointment of Chair 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reported that following 
the resignation by Councillor Ronson from being a Member of the Conservative 
Party it was appropriate to review the political balance arrangements under the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989. The report dealt with that review and 
requested changes to Committee membership and appointment of the Chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee due to changes in Conservative Party 
membership. 
 
The provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act (LGHA) 1989 had 
included the requirement that, where Members of the Council were divided into 
political groups, then the membership of its committees and sub-committees 
must reflect the political balance of the Council as a whole. Details of the 
updated political membership of the Council following the resignation by 
Councillor Ronson from being a member of the Conservative Party was set out 
in an appendix attached to the report. 
 
Under the LGHA 1989, the number of committee places to be allocated on 
committees of the Council was proportionate to that of the Council membership. 
However, the overall allocation must be proportional to the Council membership. 
The Council was required to approve those allocations. The resulting allocation 
of committee places was set out in an appendix attached to the report. 
 
Councillor M A Thomson reported that since the report had been published 
there had been a further change to the Labour Party membership as Councillor 
Ronson had joined the Labour Party. The revised allocation of committee places 
had been circulated prior to the meeting. 
 
Members were requested to note the revisions to the political balance and agree 
the revised appointments to Committees and confirmation of appointment of the 
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee which under the Constitution 
should be a member of the largest opposition political group. 
 
It was moved by Councillor M A Thomson and seconded by Councillor C 
Thomson and it was, 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 

1. To appoint Councillor Shirley as the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



2. To note that Councillor Ronson had joined the Labour Group; 
 

3. To note the revised political balance calculations as set out in the revised 
appendix; and 
 

4. To agree that the Group Leaders provide the Monitoring Officer the 
revised nominations to Committees where necessary, to be circulated 
with the Minutes. 
 

22 – Affordable Housing and Developer Contributions Supplementary 
Planning Document 

 
The purpose of the report was to seek approval of the Affordable Housing and 
Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) for Barrow. 
The SPD sets out the Council’s proposed approach to the delivery of affordable 
housing and to seeking financial contributions from developers for infrastructure 
and services. The document had been prepared under the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. 
 
Since Executive Committee a point of clarification had arisen resulting in a minor 
textual amendment as detailed in Paragraph 4.5 of the report, and that had been 
incorporated into the final version. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Morgan, and 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 

1. To note the content of the Affordable Housing and Developer 
Contributions SPD and the consultation which had been undertaken; and 
 

2. To agree that the Affordable Housing and Developer Contributions 
Supplementary Planning Document be formally adopted. 

 
23 – Officer Scheme of Delegation (plus addendum report) 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer’s report sought an 
amendment to the Officer Scheme of Delegation to reflect the new post of 
Capital Programme Manager and the change of title of the Democratic and 
Electoral Services Manager, together with approvals required with regards to 
banking signatories for HSBC as attached to the addendum report. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts, and 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 

1. To agree to the addition to the Officer Delegation Scheme as shown in 
paragraph 3.1 to the main report; 
 

2. To approve the recommendation with regards to banking signatories as 
attached to the addendum report; and 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



3. To note reference in the Proper Officer appointments to Democratic 
Services Manager will be updated to show the new title of Democratic 
and Electoral Services Manager. 

 
24 – Community Governance Review 
 
The purpose of the Head of Legal and Governance’s report was to consider the 
Draft Recommendations of the Community Governance Working Group 
(CGWG), having considered the results of the First Stage Consultation with 
residents, stakeholders and other local authorities. 
 
The consultation process undertaken to date had been set out in detail in the 
report, and the recommendations put forward had been fully considered by the 
Working Group. Appendix 1 set out the recommendations with regards to the 
creation of a Barrow Parish/Town Council, and if these were approved by 
Members, then a second stage public consultation would commence. A report 
would also be taken to the Shadow Westmorland and Furness Cabinet to 
update them on the process. 
 
The complexities with regards to the undertaking of the review alongside the 
transitional arrangements of a new Westmorland and Furness Council could not 
be underestimated and if the recommendations were approved then the 
Working Group would continue to look at the requirements for any 
reorganisation order, and a special council meeting was likely in September to 
consider the final stages ahead of a final report to the Shadow Westmorland and 
Furness Cabinet. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Morgan, and 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 

1. To note the Consultation Process and work undertaken by Officers and 
the Member Working Group on the Community Governance Review 
following publication of the Terms of Reference in February 2022; 
 

2. That the draft recommendations as set out at Appendix 1 of the report be 
agreed and published as part of a Second Stage Public Consultation 
process commencing on Monday 25th July and closing on Friday 26th 
August 2022 inclusive and that the revised timetable to the Terms of 
Reference (attached as Appendix 2A to the report) be agreed; 

 

3. To note that any further submissions or representations received as part 
of the Second Stage Public Consultation would be considered by Council 
at an extraordinary meeting to be scheduled in September 2022; and 

 

4. That as part of the report back, the CGR Working Group would also 
consider and make recommendations to Council, on the provisions of a 
Re-organisation Order, the Community Governance Review final 
recommendations and such other matters as may be required to be 
considered in drafting final recommendations for the Shadow 
Westmorland and Furness Council and the potential formal creation of a 
Barrow Town Council. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



 
REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 
 
25 – Planning 
 
It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the minutes of the meetings of the Planning Committee held 
on 12th April, 24th May, 15th June and 12th July 2022 be received. 
 
26 – Licensing Regulatory 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister, and  
 
RESOLVED:- That the minutes of the meetings of the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee held on 20th April, 19th May and 13th June, 2022 be received. 
 
27 – Executive 
 
It was moved by Councillor Brook, and  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 

1. That the minutes of the meetings of the Executive Committee held on 
22nd March, 25th May and 22nd June, 2022 be received and that the 
recommendations contained therein had been dealt with under Agenda 
Item Nos. 10 - 12 as outlined in Minute Nos. 22 - 24 above; and  

 
2. That item from the Extraordinary Executive Committee held on 22nd 

March, 2022 had been approved by Council on 22nd March, 2022. 
 
28 – Audit and Governance 
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the minutes of the meetings of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 17th March and 22nd April, 2022 be received. 
 
29 – Overview and Scrutiny 
 
It was moved by Councillor Cassidy, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the minutes of the meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 24th March, 26th May and 27th July, 2022 be received. 
 
30 – Questions to the Leader of the Council 
 
No questions had been submitted to the Leader of the Council under notice as 
required by Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4. 
 
The meeting closed at 5.45 pm. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 
AN EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this Borough was held 
at the Town Hall, Barrow-in-Furness at 5.30 pm. on Wednesday the 14th day of 
September, 2022. 
 
PRESENT:- Councillor Preston (Mayor in the Chair) and Councillors Assouad, 
Barlow, Biggins, Brook, Burley, Burns, Callister, Cassidy, Hamilton, Husband, 
Johnston, McEwan, Morgan, Nott, Pemberton, Robson, Ronson, Seward, 
Shirley, C. Thomson, Tyson, Wall and Worthington. 
 
Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Chief Executive), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), 
Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), Jon Huck (Democratic and 
Electoral Services Manager), Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer) 
and Katie Pepper (Democratic and Electoral Services Officer). 
 
31 – Minute’s Silence 
 
The Mayor requested Members to stand and observe a one minute’s silence as 
a mark of respect for Her Majesty, The Queen Elizabeth II who had passed 
away peacefully on 8th September, 2022. 
 
32 – Tributes to Her Majesty, The Queen Elizabeth II 
 
The Mayor and Representatives of the Group Leaders in attendance paid tribute 
to Her Majesty, The Queen Elizabeth II. 
 
33 – Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies for absence had been submitted from Councillors D. Edwards, H. 
Edwards, Gawne, Hall, McClure, McLeavy, Maddox, Roberts and Thomson. 
 

Councillors D. Edwards, H. Edwards, Gawne, McClure, McLeavy had requested 
the reason for their non-attendance to be recorded as a matter of respect for the 
passing of Her Majesty, The Queen Elizabeth II. 
 
34 – Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or Dispensations. 
 
35 – Announcements 
 
There were no announcements from the Chair, Leader or Head of Paid Service. 
 
36 – Public Participation 
 
No questions, representations, deputations or petitions had been received in 
respect of the meeting. 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



37 – LGR – Update and Appointment of Interim Head of Paid Services 
 

The Chair of the Executive Committee congratulated the Chief Executive on her 
confirmed role with Westmorland and Furness Council. 
 

The report brought forward an update on resource requirements as the Council 
heads towards vesting day for the new Westmorland and Furness Council and 
sought confirmation of appointment of an interim Head of Paid Service to 
support the Chief Executive and Senior Management Team between now and 
the end of March 2023. 
 

The report also requested Council to consider changes to the delegations to the 

Chief Executive to cover the Interim Head of Paid Service so that the Interim 

was able to exercise the same functions as the current Chief Executive. Some 

revisions were also proposed to the Proper Officer appointments. 
 

The recommendation followed a process which concluded with interviews 
undertaken by the Chief Officer Appointment Panel. The recommendation was 
that David Parr, OBE be appointed as the Interim Head of Paid Services, his 
details had been circulated in the addendum report which had been circulated to 
Members. 
 

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Burns, and 
 

RESOLVED:-  
 

1. To receive the update; 
 

2. To agree the appointment of David Parr, OBE as the Interim Head of Paid 
Service as detailed within the report on a temporary basis, with 
immediate effect, for a period to 31st March, 2023; and 

 

3. That the Constitution be amended to include delegations to the Interim 
Head of Paid Service and updates to the Proper Officer appointments as 
detailed within the report. 

 
38 – Community Governance Review 
 

At its meeting on 19th July 2022, Council had resolved that the draft 
recommendations be agreed and published as part of a Second Stage Public 
Consultation process, along with the revised timetable for the consultation.  This 
report updated Members on the responses to the Second Stage Public 
Consultation process and consequently, the draft final recommendations from 
the CGR Working Group. The report also set out the provisions of a Re-
organisation Order and which, once approved, would be forwarded to the 
Shadow Westmorland and Furness Council to consider for the formal creation of 
a Barrow Town Council. 
 

In presenting the report Councillor Brook highlighted the work that had gone into 
the review which had concluded that a Parish (Town) council for Barrow would 
be effective and efficient and bring the benefit of a local, democratically elected 
voice for the town.  

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



Councillor Brook drew members’ attention to recommendation (3) which 
recommended the budget for a parish council for the 2023/24 financial year. 
That was important for the reorganisation order since the parish could not 
calculate an amount that was greater than the amount stated for the first year. 
Once it was up and running then it had the right to decide on their future 
budgets. The work had concluded that a sum of £387,700 be recommended, 
and that was broken down as set out in Appendix 3 to the report. 
 

Since Westmorland and Furness Council was also in transition, transfer of land, 
property or liabilities was not proposed at this stage, except for certain 
ceremonial chains, etc. as identified in the related chattels list. 
 

A request was however recommended to be made to Westmorland and Furness 
for a new Parish Council to be accommodated in the Barrow Town Hall and that 
the Council be further asked to make such accommodation available initially at a 
peppercorn rent subject to such other terms and conditions as the parties may 
agree. 
 

Councillor Shirley asked the following question:-  
 

“Referring to Page 25 Appendix 3 1.11 and Page 26 Appendix 3 1.18  
 

As part of the CGR Appendix 3 - the proposal suggests the costs of elections 
will be £100,000. As this request is part of the overall local government 
reform piece, has the council requested that these initial costs be offset using 
the reserves that will be carried forward by the Borough Council into the new 
Unitary? This would mean a 28% saving on the precept in year one and 
would allow for an election reserve to be built up over the 5 years between 
elections; and  
 

The largest cost on the budget is staffing. The current proposal is for 
£103,500 in year one to be allocated to staffing - what proposed staffing 
model is being adopted as part of the CGR?”  

 

The Chair of the Executive replied that election costs were being raised with the 
Shadow Authority and that this was something that was being explored.  The 
staffing model would be for the parish council to determine but were intended to 
cover the first year, and include recruitment of a Clerk and support staff.  
 

Councillor Ronson also asked the following question:- 
 

“With funding being made available for a prospective Barrow Town/Parish 
Council election, what, if any, funding will be made available to the existing 
parish councils within the Barrow Borough to support the one-off election 
costs in 2023. The estimated election costs for the three parishes will greatly 
exceed the 10% yearly limit on the precept increase for those parish councils 
and so if an election is called, funding will be required from outside the parish 
councils. Can this matter be explored along with the funding allocation for 
Barrow’s new council elections?” 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



The Head of Legal and Governance replied that there were ongoing 
conversations taking place with Westmorland and Furness as part of the budget 
setting process. 
 

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Husband, and 
 

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed to recommend to the Shadow 
Authority for Westmorland and Furness that they:- 
 

1. Agree that a new Parish Council be established for the unparished area 
of Barrow; 

 

2. Subject to Agreement of (1) above that the following be agreed:- 
 

(a) The new Parish be named Barrow; 
 

(b) The new Parish of Barrow should have a Parish Council and be 
called Barrow Parish Council (noting the name and style of the 
new council is a matter for the new Parish Council to decide - the 
Council cannot confer the title of “Town Council” as, under 
legislation, that is a matter to be resolved by the new parish 
council once formed); 

 

(c) The ordinary year of election will be 2023 and then every four 
years after; 

 

(d) The new Parish of Barrow be comprised of the existing eleven 
wards of Barrow Borough Council covering the unparished area of 
the borough, namely: Walney North, Walney South, Barrow Island, 
Hindpool, Central, Ormsgill, Parkside, Risedale, Hawcoat, 
Newbarns and Roosecote; 

 

(e) The electoral arrangements that should apply for the new Parish of 
Barrow will be that: 
 

(i) The Parish be divided into wards; 
 

(ii) The Wards for the Parish shall be those which apply for the 
Borough Council namely: Walney North, Walney South, 
Barrow Island, Hindpool, Central, Ormsgill, Parkside, 
Risedale, Hawcoat, Newbarns and Roosecote; 

 

(iii) The number of Parish Councillors to be elected for each 
Ward shall be: 21 made up of:- 

 

Walney North 2 
Walney South 2 
Barrow Island 1 
Hindpool 2 
Central 2 
Ormsgill 2  
Parkside 2  

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



Risedale 2  
Hawcoat 2  
Newbarns 2  
Roosecote 2  

 

3. That in accordance with regulation 3 of the Local Government Finance 
(New Parishes) (England) Regulations 2008), the recommended budget 
to be incorporated in the Reorganisation Order for the Parish Council for 
the financial year 2023/24 is £387,700;  

 

4. That Council note the draft reorganisation order attached to the report 
and that the Monitoring Officer be authorised to take such steps as may 
be requested of it by the Westmorland and Furness Shadow Authority or 
Council (as the case may be) to finalise the Order and implement a 
decision to create a Barrow parish council; and 

 

5. That the (Shadow) Westmorland and Furness Council be asked to agree 
that a new Parish Council shall be accommodated in the Barrow Town 
Hall and that the Council be further asked to make such accommodation 
available initially at a peppercorn rent and subject to such other terms 
and conditions as the parties may agree. 

 
39 – Medium Term Financial Plan 
 

The Director of Resources reported updates to the Medium Term Financial Plan 
for 2022-2025. 
 

The revisions covered the energy market price pressures, the April 2022 pay 
award, the direct delivery of the waste service, and the impact on financial 
reserves. 
 

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor C. Thomson, and 
 

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed:- 
 

1. To approve the revised Medium Term Financial Plan for 2022-2025; 
 

2. To approve the movements in earmarked reserves as at 31st March 
2022; 

 

3. To approve the use of the General Fund balance as set out in the report; 
and 

 

4. To endorse the revised lease arrangements for the future depot as 
specified in the report. 

 

The meeting closed at 5.50 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Council 

18 October 2022 

External Auditor’s – Statutory Recommendations for Year 

Ended 31 March 2021 

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report brings forward the statutory recommendations of the External 

Auditors’ for the year ending 31 March 2021 for consideration by full Council. 

 

1.2 Members are asked to consider the report and approve the improvement plan to 

address the recommendations made and ensure that progress is monitored and 

managed effectively. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Council: 

(1)  receives the statutory recommendations of Grant Thornton made under 

section 24 of the Audit and Accountability Act 2014; and 

(2) Approves the Improvement Plan to address the recommendations made 

and the proposed reporting mechanisms to ensure progress is 

managed effectively. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

 

3.1 As well as their responsibility to give an opinion on the financial statements, the 

External Auditors are required to consider whether the Council has put in place 

proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 

of resources.  The Auditors also have additional powers and duties under the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to make written recommendations to the 

Council. 

 

3.2 Internal Audit and External Audit have highlighted over a period of time 

significant weaknesses in aspects of the Council’s procurement and contract 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



management arrangements. In their report, Grant Thornton have concluded that, 

it is appropriate for them to use their powers to make written recommendations 

under section 24 of the Act, due to inadequate arrangements in procurement and 

contract management and the Council’s capacity to respond to a number of 

governance related recommendations raised by Internal Audit and Grant 

Thornton. 

 

Recommendations of the Review 

 

3.3 Grant Thornton issued their final report to the Council on 6 October 2022. Within 

the report they have made three statutory recommendations and the Council is 

legally required to provide a response that sets out how it will address the 

recommendations. Their full report is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

3.4 Grant Thornton have recognised that the Council has and continues to put in 

place arrangements to address historic failings in this area.  However, these 

arrangements are not fully embedded and have largely only been in place since 

April 2022 and therefore the effectiveness of the revised contract and 

procurement procedures has not yet been subject to internal or external 

assurance reviews. 

 

Management Response – Improvement Plan 

 

3.5 The Council recognises and accepts all of the recommendations within Grant 

Thornton’s report.  As indicated, action was being taken to address the issues 

examined by internal and external auditors and the Council is committed to 

prioritising and embedding the improvements across the organisation. 

 

3.6 In August 2021 the Council engaged with an external specialist to review the 

procurement and contracting framework and address issues highlighted from 

audits.  Improvements were identified, accepted, and implemented through the 

new Procurement Strategy adopted in January 2022, revised standing orders, 

and new procurement rules.  The new procurement rules have been effective 

since April 2022, introduced following a month-long period of training with 

managers and officers, supported by a reset of the corporate procurement 

support role. 

 

3.7 An Improvement Plan has been developed to address all of the recommendations 

made. This is attached to this report at Appendix 2. As well as named lead 

officers responsible and timescales for delivery, the plan also includes measures 

of success so that the council can track the impact of its activity to ensure actions 

are addressing the issues identified through the report. These will be taken to 

Audit and Governance Committee for further review and consideration. 

 

3.8 The management response for each of the areas for improvement is set out 

below.   

 

3.9 Recommendation 1 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



 Embed and enforce the Council’s updated contract standing orders and 

procurement rules. 

  

 The Council will ensure that regular, refresher training is offered to procuring 

officers; the training video will be available on the intranet; the procurement 

guidance and handbook will be regularly updated with any changes notified to all 

managers and updated on the intranet.  Spot checking of ordered goods and 

services made via intranet to ensure the procurement rules are being followed 

are ongoing.  Specialist training on the Chest (ProActis) will be provided – this is 

the Council’s e-procurement portal for tenders. 

Recommendation 2 

Ensure members and officers have robust assurance and reporting 

arrangements in place, for managing all ongoing contracts to enable appropriate 

and timely action to remediate any non-compliance or wider deficiencies. 

 

The schedule of significant contracts shall be provided to the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee; Overview and Scrutiny Committee will select those 

contracts to be reported on through the committee cycle.  Regular progress 

reports to Corporate Programme Board will highlight any issues on the contracts 

register and action will be determined.  A report on the use of the new 

procurement exemption process will provide assurance to the Audit and 

Governance Committee. 

 

Recommendation 3 

Review the Council’s escalation arrangements up to Full Council and Overview & 

Scrutiny Committee to ensure an adequate and timely response to address 

significant contract environment weaknesses. 

 

The Council will review the outstanding current and historic Internal Audit 

recommendations and establish the monitoring scope and reporting route with 

the chair of the Audit and Governance Committee.  The arrangements for the 

Audit and Governance Committee to refer and escalate significant governance 

concerns shall be reported. 

 

3.10 Reporting Mechanisms 

 

3.11 Actions within this Improvement Plan will be monitoring regularly by the Senior 

Management Team and reported to each meeting of Audit and Governance 

Committee. 

3.12 Progress to Date 

3.13 Commentary against the Improvement Plan shows the actions taken to take.   

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Not applicable – this report brings forward a statutory report of the External 

Auditors 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options, the report arose from the external audit role in 

considering whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and therefore the 

report is a public document and must be reported to full Council. As the report 

includes statutory recommendations the council has a legal obligation to respond 

appropriately.   

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Good governance underpins all the Council Plan priorities and objectives. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The actions under the improvement plan will be carried out within existing 

resources.   

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 The Council is legally required to respond to any statutory recommendations 

made by the external auditor and demonstrate action is being or will be taken to 

address issues raised in the report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 These recommendations relate to the sovereign authority. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Failure to take appropriate 

action to address 

recommendations 

Reputational, possible 

government intervention 

Ensure action plan 

implemented and 

monitored appropriate 

steps taken to address 

   

 

Contact Officers  

smroberts@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Grant Thornton – Barrow-in-Furness Statutory 

Recommendations 

2  Improvement Plan 

 

Background Documents Available 

None 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



•

•

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



P
age 31

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



P
age 33

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 – IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 

Ref Action Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of Success Commentary/Progress 

Improving 
Governance 

1. Embed and enforce the Council’s updated contract standing orders and procurement rules 
(Officers in all departments to follow and fully evidence compliance with contract standing orders on all procured services) 

1.1 Ensure regular refresher training 
for procuring officers. 
 
Ensure Training Video easily 
accessible on the intranet. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Blanket training 
provided March 2022; 
refresher training 
provided ad-hoc and to 
individuals where 
needed. 
 
Recording available 
from September 2022. 

No. of attendees. 
 
No. of confirmed 
views. 

All procuring officers 
were offered training 
in March 2022 on the 
new procurement rules 
and procedures. 
 
Recording of the 
training offered in 
March 2022; available 
to all officers to view as 
a refresher and to new 
officers as part of the 
induction training for 
those involved in 
procurement. 

1.2 Ensure guidance and handbook up 
to date and any changes notified 
to all managers and updated on 
the intranet. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Handbook up to date 
as at 9.9.22. 

Review log/record. Guidance and 
Handbook will be 
reviewed quarterly to 
ensure it is kept up to 
date.  A link to the 
Handbook will be 
circulated to all officers 
when any updates 
have been applied 

1.3 Spot Check of ordered goods and 
services made via intranet to 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Quarterly - Ongoing Reduction in purchases 
made not following 
procurement rules.  

Identify areas of non-
compliance and offer 
further 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 2



Ref Action Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of Success Commentary/Progress 

ensure the procurement rules are 
being followed. 

support/training to 
ensure all procurement 
rules are being 
followed. 

1.4 Training on Chest (ProActis). Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Awaiting date from 
Proactis. 

No. of attendees. All procuring officers 
will be offered training 
on the Chest e-
procurement site, 
alongside this a 
refresher of the new 
procurement rules will 
be run through as well.  

Improving 
Governance 

2.Ensure members and officers have robust assurance and reporting arrangements in place, for managing all ongoing contracts and to 
enable appropriate and timely action to remediate any non-compliance or wider deficiencies 
(As well as members receiving compliance assurance they need to demonstrate timely action in holding officers to account for any non-
compliance) 

2.1 Schedule of significant contracts 
provided to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
to select those contracts to be 
reported on through the 
committee cycle. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 
 
 
Heads of Service 

In line with Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee workplan. 

N/A – no target no. Schedule provided to 
identify the scope of 
contracts; Overview 
and Scrutiny to select 
contracts; Heads of 
Service to report on 
contract management 
arrangements. 

2.2 Regular Progress Report to 
Corporate Programme Board to 
highlight any issues on the 
contracts register.  

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Commenced July 2022 
- monthly 

Elimination of rolling 
contracts. 

Any actions to be 
identified and fed back 
to relevant responsible 
officers. 

2.3 Procurement exemption report to 
Audit and Governance Committee. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

December 2022 N/A Report to note the 
procurement 
exemption activity for 
the initial 6 months of 

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 2



Ref Action Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of Success Commentary/Progress 

operating under the 
new arrangements. 

Improving 
Governance 

3.Review the Council’s escalation arrangements up to Full Council and Overview & Scrutiny Committee to ensure an adequate and 
timely response to address significant control environmental weaknesses. 
 
(good governance arrangements via the Audit and Governance Committee to escalate ongoing significant matters to both Full Council 
and Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to demonstrate effective accountability and to drive timely improvements) 

3.1 Review the outstanding current 
and historic Internal Audit 
recommendations and establish 
the monitoring scope and 
reporting route with the chair of 
the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

Director of Resources 
& Head of Legal and 
Governance 

November 2022 Reduction in the no. of 
outstanding 
recommendations; 
focus on the high 
priority 
recommendations. 

There may be a 
resource required to 
maintain and report on 
progress – this will be 
dependent upon the 
number of 
recommendations that 
are live and can be 
actioned. 

3.2 Report to review arrangements 
and escalation controls to Audit 
and Governance Committee. 

Head of Legal and 
Governance & Director 
of Resources 

October 2022 N/A Referral and escalation 
routes clarified; this is 
additional to the 
recommendation 
review process at 3.1. 

 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Full Council 

Tuesday, 18 October 2022 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund Investment Plan 
 

 

Report from:   Director of People & Place 

Report Author:  Head of Regeneration & Planning Policy       
and Capital Programme Manager 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1   The purpose of this report is to seek agreement that Barrow Borough Council will 

act as the accountable body for UKSPF upon confirmation of the Investment Plan 

for Barrow Borough until 1 April 2023 when it will transfer into the Westmorland 

and Furness Unitary Authority. To enter into the appropriate funding agreement 

with Government in order to act as accountable body and to confirm that grant 

funding agreements with delivery partners for the individual project elements will 

be put in place in line with the recommendations set out below and agreed by 

Executive Committee. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Council:  
 

(1) Receive the update on the UK Shared Prosperity Fund Investment 

Plan; 

(2) Confirm that Barrow Borough Council will act as the accountable body 

and to enter into a grant funding agreement with government; and 

(3) Confirms authorisation to the Director of People and Place in 

consultation with the Director of Resources and Chair of Executive 

Committee to enter into grant funding agreements with delivery 

partners for the individual project elements. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  
 

Shared Prosperity Fund 
 

3.1 The UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) is part of the UK government’s 

Levelling Up agenda and a significant component of its support for places across 

the UK. It provides £2.6 billion of new funding for local investment by March 2025, 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



with all areas of the UK receiving an allocation from the Fund via a funding 

formula rather than a competition.  

 

3.2 The Fund was launched on 13th April 2022 and £2,477,528 has been allocated 

to Barrow Borough Council, with around £8.3m collectively for Barrow, Eden and 

South Lakeland District Councils. 

 

3.3 Investment Plans were submitted to government by all 3 district councils on 1 

August 2022 setting out how the funding will be spent. The Fund has 3 

investment priorities around which Investment Plans should be based: 

 

 Community and Place 

 Supporting Local Business 

 People and Skills 

 

3.4 Agreement was given by Executive Committee in May 2022 to prepare a draft 

Investment Plan and in July 2022 to submit the prepared Plan. This work was 

undertaken in collaboration with Eden and South Lakeland District Councils in 

conjunction with local stakeholders. Executive Committee recommend to Council 

that it act as accountable body for the UKSPF prior to 1 April when it would 

transfer into Westmorland and Furness Council. 

 

3.5 A Local Partnership Group for Westmorland & Furness has been established 

who will act in an advisory capacity to ensure the strategic fit and deliverability of 

the Investment Plan and funded projects. 

 

Local Government Reorganisation 

 

3.6 Whilst Barrow, Eden and South Lakeland District Councils are lead authorities 

for UKSPF and have submitted separate Investment Plans, government 

guidance makes specific reference to Local Government Reorganisation in 

Cumbria.  It states that consent of Westmorland and Furness Council in shadow 

form is needed for the investment plans and that plans should include some joint 

elements notably delivery arrangements, which will aid transition post vesting 

day, when the district investment plans will be merged into plans for the new 

Council. 

 

3.7  The Barrow UKSPF Investment Plan was endorsed by the Westmorland and 

Furness Shadow Executive on 22 July 2022. 

 

3.8 The accountable body role for Barrow UKSPF will transfer into the Westmorland 

and Furness Unitary Authority from 1 April 2023. 

  

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 A Focus Group was held for each of the three themes in June hosted jointly for 

the 3 district authorities which brought together over 90 stakeholders. 

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 8



4.2 A Local Partnership Group comprising of stakeholders has been established with 

it first meeting on 7th July 2022.  Stakeholders include elected members from 

Westmorland and Furness and the district Councils and representatives from the 

business, tourism, sustainability, community, voluntary and education and skills 

sectors. This will be the key mechanism for wider consultation and engagement 

on the production of the investment plans and their future delivery. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Do not submit an Investment Plan to meet the timescale required, UKSPF funds 

will not be paid to the Council. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 This funding stream supports all priorities of the Barrow Council Plan, as it will 

support cross cutting investment across the borough supporting disadvantaged 

residents and creating a vibrant, safe and welcoming place where people want 

to live and supporting the economy to thrive. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  
 

7.1.1 The funding period for UKSPF is April 2022 to March 2025 with payments 

expected to lead authorities by October 2022. 

 

7.1.2 The successful delivery of the UKSPF Investment Plan would require resources, 

Barrow BC are keen to build on the programme management arrangements in 

place for Town Deal with Cumbria County Council. UKSPF includes a 4% 

administration fee in 2022/23 which would be used to support programme 

management. The allocations made to the three districts is as follows: 
 

Allocations Barrow Eden SLDC Total 

Total Allocation  £  2,477,528   £  1,990,203   £ 3,845,592   £   8,313,323  

Programme 
Management (4%)  £       99,101   £       79,608   £    153,824   £      332,533  

Available for 
Interventions  £  2,378,427   £  1,910,595   £ 3,691,768   £   7,980,790  

 

7.2 Legal  
 

7.2.1 There are no legal issues to raise in this report. If the UKSPF Investment Plan 

bid is accepted the Council will be required to  enter into a grant funding 

agreement with the Government, the content and implications of which are 

unknown at this stage and advice will be taken as appropriate prior to 

 entering into such an agreement. 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 If successful the Shared Prosperity Fund work would need to be incorporated 

 into the Council Plan of the Westmorland & Furness unitary authority. 

 

7.3.2 A prioritised list of recovery activities will need to be fed into the LGR Policy 

Workstream in order that the post-covid needs of the Borough’s communities are 

considered in the setting of Council priorities for the new Westmorland & Furness 

Council. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
 

7.4.1 UKSPF funding is allocated for places and communities and includes projects   
under three themes of Community and Place, Supporting Local Business and 
People and Skills which will deliver activity for all of our communities and 
residents including families and older people, access to education, health and 
 services, enhancement of town centres and open spaces, and improving cycling 
and walking infrastructure. Consultation was undertaken with a range of 
stakeholders  on the views of the groups and individuals they represent including 
specialist groups. 

 
Risk 

   

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Failure to have appropriate 

Accountable Body for UKSPF 

Funding not released 

and projects not 

delivered to schedule 

Ensure Accountable 

Body for UKSPF   

 

Contact Officers  

Helen Houston, hhouston@barrowbc.gov.uk  

David Haughian, dhaughian@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  - Barrow UKSPF Investment Plan 

 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 

Prospectus 

 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-

shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus/uk-shared-

prosperity-fund-prospectus  

 

  

Page 42

Agenda Item 8

mailto:hhouston@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:dhaughian@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus

	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	CL19JULY22
	CLEXTRA14SEPT22

	7 External Auditor's Statutory Recommendations for Year Ended 31 March 2021
	Enc. 1 for External Auditors Report - Statutory Recommendations
	Appendix 2 - Improvement Plan_v3

	8 UK Shared Prosperity Fund Investment Plan

